January 13, 2006
NOTICE TO ALL OFFERORS IN THE COMPETITIVE RANGE
REFERENCE:
Amendment No. 2
DOL05RP20055
Additional information has been requested by prospective offerors and it has been determined by the Contracting Officer that this information is made available to all bidders.  The closing date for this RFP remains at February 1, 2006, by 2:00 p.m. local time.

Keith A. Bond
Contracting Officer
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CONTINUATION PAGE

14. DISCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT (CONT’D)


Answers to Requests for Clarification in response to the RFP
 
1.  
Question: Section B.1 of Solicitation Number DOL051RP20055 is entitled Time and Materials/Labor Hour Indefinite Quantity Type Solicitation.  However, the first sentence of Section B.1 states "The Contracting Officer shall award either firm fixed price or cost reimbursement type task orders."  Please clarify the type of delivery orders that may be issued under the awarded Indefinite Quantity-Indefinite Delivery contract.


Answer:  The Contracting Officer may award either firm fixed price or cost reimbursement task orders.  Contractors shall be paid a firm fixed price or be reimbursed costs based on the time and materials required to complete the task.  

2.  
Question:  There is a 35 page restriction for the Technical Approach section of the proposal.  Are there page limits for the Staff Experience and Qualifications and Past Performance sections of the proposal? 


Answer:  There are no page limitations on the Staff Experience and Qualifications and the Past Performance sections of an offeror’s proposal.

3. 
Question:  Must resumes follow the sample format in J.9 if they contain the information in L.7 (A) Part 2-(2)?  


Answer: Resumes are not required to follow the format of Attachment J.9.  They are only required to contain the information specified in L.7 (A) Part 2 – (2).

4. 
Question:  Section L.5 of the solicitation directs the offeror to submit Past Performance Reference Information Sheets for five relevant contracts and subcontracts completed during the past three years and at least 12 months in duration.  May the offeror include ongoing projects?


Answer:  Offerors may include ongoing projects in their past performance references as long as they have been at least 12 months in duration. 

5. 
Question:  Section L.6 of the solicitation indicates that up to five contractor personnel may attend the oral presentation and must answer questions directed to them.  Must each of the contractor attendees also deliver a portion of the oral presentation?


Answer:  Offerors may have up to five presenters and two observers.  Presenters must make a part of the presentation and must be available during the question and answer session to answer questions.  There are no minimum requirements for how long a presenter must speak.  Observers can neither present nor answer questions.  

6. 
Question:  The cover page of the solicitation states, "Potential offerors/bidders are asked to complete and submit a proposal/bid intent form." We could not locate this form in the solicitation.  Is it acceptable for offerors/bidders to submit their intent to bid in an email?


Answer:  Offerors do not have to submit a proposal/ bid intent form.  Please disregard the language regarding submission of a proposal/bid intent form, located on the cover page of the solicitation.    

7.  
Question:  On page L-3 of the RFP, under item #4, it reads "The Project Director who will have a 25% time operational responsibility..." However, under the section on "Key Personnel" on page L-7, it indicates that the Project Director should have a 20% time commitment. Please clarify the correct time commitment for the Project Director.


Answer:  The Project Director should have a 20% time commitment.  


8. 
Question:  Attachment J-9 (example of a modified resume) includes information about a team member's proposed role in a project. Since there are no projects specified at this point, should we create a hypothetical project and then describe how an employee would be involved in that project?


Answer:  Describe the role that the individual will have on the tasks detailed in Section C of the RFP. 

9.
Question:  The description of the oral presentation on pages L-2 to L-4 discusses including a work breakdown analysis, a contract work schedule (including a Gantt chart), a performance risk analysis, etc. Again, since projects have not yet been determined, should we propose a hypothetical project to describe how we would approach it?


Answer:  Propose a hypothetical project to illustrate how the offeror would approach the types of tasks detailed in Section C.  

10.  
Question:  Section L.5.A states that the "offeror must submit the past performance reference information by filling out Attachment J.5 for each of the five references."  Since Attachment J.5 appears to be a non-write-enabled PDF file, by "filling out," does the Government mean reproducing and organizing the information in a similar way in (for example) Microsoft Word for submission in hard copy?  Or does the Government intend for offerors to type or hand write information on to a hard copy of the PDF file?


Answer: Offerors may either reproduce or organize the information in a similar way or type or hand write the information on a hard copy of the PDF file.  

11.  
Question:  Section L.8 and Evaluation Factor (1) on page M-3 state that the necessary time commitment of the Project Director is 20%; however, Section L.6, #4 refers to a Project Director who will have a 25% time operational responsibility for contract performance.  Which is the correct percentage of time commitment for the Project Director?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 7.  

12.  
Question:  Section L.5 PAST PERFORMANCE.  In paragraph A, the RFP states:  “A list of five (5) “relevant” contracts and subcontracts completed during the past three (3) years and at least 12 months in duration.”  Can the offeror use individual Task Orders as contracts?


Answer: Offerors can use individual task orders as contracts.  

13.  
Question:  Section L.7 SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL.  In paragraph (a) Part 2 - (2), the RFP states:  “…An example of the modified resume is included as Attachment J.9.  Is the example resume format optional?  In reviewing this attachment, the format appears to be more conducive to response to specific task orders.  Specifically, the Task Area, Functional Role, Activities, and Time Commitment Over X Number of Years lend themselves more to a response to a specific task order rather than the response to the IDIQ contract itself.


Answer: Please see the answer to Question No. 3.  

14.  
Question:  Sections L.6.4 Offeror’s Presentation Team, L.8 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS, and M.3.B. (5)(1) seem to conflict with each other.  Section L.6.4 states that “The Project Director who will have a 25% time operational responsibility for contract performance…”  Section L.8 states “The key personnel positions and their required time commitment are as follows:  Project Director – 20%”.  Section M.3.b. (5)(1) states “… (time commitment – 20%)."  Please clarify.


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 7.  

15.  
Question:  Section L.7. (A) Part 3 BUSINESS MANAGEMENT PROPOSAL.    Items (1), (2), and (3) require 3 copies, 1 copy, and 1 copy, respectively, be submitted.  Does the government want all 3 copies of item (2), Statement of Financial Capability (Attachment J.1), submitted in separate binders or all 3 copies in one binder with Items (1) and (2)?


Answer:  The three copies of the Statement of Financial Capability shall be submitted in one binder with items 1 and 2.  

16.  
Question:  Section M.3.B.   INDIVIDUAL STAFF EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS.  The RFP currently places a 35-page limit on Technical Approach only.  Section M.3.B. includes items in addition to the resumes and letters of intent such as project organization and staff loading charts.  Are we to understand that this additional information to be included in this section of the proposal will not be counted towards the 35-page limit because this is not part of our technical approach?  


Answer:  The information that is required for Individual Staff Experience and Qualifications is not counted toward the 35-page limitation.  

17.  
Question:  In the discussion of the oral presentation (Section L.6.4, page L-3), the Project Director is described as having a 25% “time operational responsibility”. In Section L.8 (page L-7), the Project Director’s “required time commitment” is listed as 20%. The 20% figure is repeated in Section M.3.B (1) on page M-3. Is the required minimum time commitment of the Project Director 20% or 25%?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 7.  

18.  
Question:  Section J, Attachment J.8, is the Loaded Hourly Labor Rate Chart and consists of 5 rows corresponding to the 5 labor categories. Are we to propose in Part 3, Business Management Proposal, the completed Attachment J.8 with (1) only one rate per labor category per year or (2) with multiple rates within each labor category corresponding to the actual loaded rates of each individual bid within that labor category?


Answer:  On the loaded hourly rate chart, offerors should list each individual proposed, as well as his/her title on the contract and his/her loaded hourly rate.  Offerors should also establish a maximum (ceiling) rate for each of the labor categories and indicate the maximum rate on the labor rate chart.  The maximum (ceiling) rate will be used as a guide for new personnel after contract award.  Offerors must request permission from the Contracting Officer to exceed the ceiling rate listed for the same labor category.  

19.  
Question:  Your answer to Question 45 regarding the draft RFP allows firms to be parts of multiple proposals “as long as offerors are not proposing the same key personnel”.  Is the implication of this response that a person can not appear and speak at more than one Oral Presentation if his or her firm is part of more than one team that has been invited to Orals?


Answer: An individual may be a presenter in more than one oral presentation if his or her firm is part of more than one team in the competitive range if he or she is not proposed in the same key personnel position and the percentage of time allotted for the individual among the two teams does not exceed 100 percent.  

20.  
Question:  Section L.5 of the RFP states that offerors must provide information on five relevant contracts and subcontracts completed during the past three years. How significant is the clarifier “completed”? Would you accept a project that is very near completion, such as a few months from completion on a 5-year project?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No.  4.

21.  
Question:  In Section G.1, you have provided invoicing instructions for cost reimbursement, A(1), and fixed price, A(2), task orders, but not for time and materials task orders. Since you expect to award primarily time and materials task orders, is this merely an oversight?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 1.

22.  
Question:  Section L.7 Part 3 requests a 'detailed Business Management Proposal" outlined on pages L-5 through L-7. Does the list shown on pages L-5 through L-7 constitute the complete list of items expected for Section L.7 Part 3 or will the Contracting Office be expecting other items that might be found in a typical business management plan?


Answer:  The lists of items in Section L.7 Part 3 are the only items expected to be in Part 3 of the offeror’s proposal.  

23.  
Question:  Is there a form of proposal intent required to be submitted before the February 1, 2006 Due Date? The first page of the package states, 'Potential offerors/bidders are asked to complete and submit a proposal/bid intent form." We are assuming that since this is a Labor Hour Indefinite Quantity type solicitation, Section L serves as the entire proposal's 'intent" section, but we need to make sure that there is no separate letter, form or attachment. 


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 6.   

24.  
Question:  Does the URL: http://www.doleta.gov/sga/rfpforms.cfm given in the solicitation contains a full list of ALL of the required forms, Documents, Exhibits, and other attachments expected from offerors? 


Answer:  The URL http://www.doleta.gov/sga/rfpforms.cfm contains the PDF versions of Attachments J.1 through J.7.  Attachments J.8 and J.9 are provided it Section J. of the solicitation.  

25. Question:  Other than Sections A, H, J, K, L, and M, can you please confirm what other FAR numbers or provisions contain required form attachments, signature blocks, or requests for other information that is expected to be completed by the offeror. After careful review, it looks like Sections B, C, D, E, F and G are provided for our information in preparing our proposal and do not contain signature blocks, forms or request for information. Is this correct?


Answer: You are correct.
 

26.  
Question:  Concerning Standard Form 33 Box 13 Discount for Prompt Payment – inside the parenthesis says (See Section I, Clause No. 52-232-8) but I see no such clause number or reference material. Does this box apply to this RFP? If so, please direct me to the reference material.


Answer:  Offerors are not required to fill out box 13 of Standard Form 33. 

27.  
Question:  Concerning Standard Form 33 Box 15A – there are 2 boxes indicating 'Code" and 'Facility." Where would offeror get this information if offeror were not a current incumbent?


Answer:  Offerors are not required to fill out Code and Facility in Box 15A of Standard Form 33.  

28.  
Question:  Is this Solicitation (Number: DOL051RP20055 and subsequent amendments) only open to current incumbents of this award? 


Answer: This solicitation is not open only to current incumbents of this award.

29.  
Question:  Concerning Section G.3 DOLAR 2952.201-70 CONTRACTING OFFICER'S TECHNICAL REPRESENTATIVE (COTR) (MAY 2004) – what is the name and contact info for the COTR for this solicitation? 


Answer:  The COTR for this solicitation is Keith A. Bond.  

30.  
Question:  How might interested parties apply to become a DOLAR 2952.201-70 COTR for this type of solicitation if not now, in the future?  


Answer:  COTRs are federal employees of the Department of Labor.    

31.  
Question:  Concerning amount of awards for current incumbent contractors – Please explain the difference between the first amount of the Award listed in the RFP and the second amount listed identified as the total amount of award inclusive of options. (i.e. how were these amounts determined?)


Answer:  The first amount was the amount awarded to the contract when the contract was awarded in June of 2002.  This figure was inclusive of the $2,500 guaranteed for the first year of the contract as well as any task orders that were awarded to the contractor at the time of contract award.  The second award amount is the approximate current value of the contract, including the amount of all tasks orders awarded during all four years of the contract.  

32. Question:  Concerning Section B.1 TIME AND MATERIALS/LABOR HOUR INDEFINITE QUANTITY TYPE SOLICITATION, the RFP indicates that the offeror should submit proposed direct loaded labor hourly rates and separate rates for each individual proposed. It states that the DOL shall reimburse other direct costs separately. Is the offeror supposed to submit with this RFP some sort of an expected budget for those other direct costs? If so, on what form?


Answer:  Offerors should only use the loaded hourly rate chart.  An expected budget for other direct costs is not required.  

33.  
Question:  Please explain what the DOL considers acceptable printing costs to be reimbursed under this solicitation. Section H.8 Printing is confusing. Does it mean that the DOL will consider for reimbursement printing that is one sheet, size 8 by 11 inches, one side only, and one color as long as the production units are more than 5,000 for a single page print job or more than 25,000 for an aggregate multiple page project?


Answer:  The determination of acceptable printing costs will be based on a market survey.
34.  
Question:  Concerning L.8 Special Requirements – please confirm whether the required time commitment is 20% or 25% for the Project Director position. The time commitment stated on page L-7 of the original RFP is 20%, but in Amendment 1 Question #15 on page 4, the writer uses 25%. 


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 7.  

35.  
Question:  Concerning L.8 Special Requirements – is the required time commitment for the Project Director a 'minimum" accepted by the DOL Contracting Officer or can it be adjusted by the offeror based on previous or current experience with similar projects?


Answer:  The Project Director must have at least a 20% time commitment to the contract.  

36.  
Question:  Concerning B.2 Schedule of Direct Labor Hour Costs – confirm whether figures that will be placed in the chart represent loaded and base year and option year(s) 'hourly rates" only and not annualized salary amounts for each position in each labor category. 


Answer:   Figures placed in the Schedule of Direct Labor Hour Costs represent the loaded hourly rates for the base year and option years and not annualized salary amounts for each individual.  

37.  
Question:  Concerning B.2. Schedule of Direct Labor Hour Costs – If loaded hourly rate includes unloaded hourly rate, fringe benefits, overhead, G&A, and fixed fee, what constitutes the base year and option year rates? (For example: Does Base Year column include the same components, i.e. unloaded hourly rate, fringe benefits, overhead, G&A, and fixed fee, except for any proposed allowable salary escalations annually? Do Option Year columns include the same components?)  


Answer:  The base year and option year rates include the same components (unloaded hourly rate, fringe benefits, overhead, G&A, and fee).  The Option year rates are inclusive of allowable salary escalations.

38.  
Question:  Does a self-certified SDB qualify to compete for this solicitation if no certification status has been received yet from the SBA? 


Answer:  All small businesses are eligible to apply under the applicable NAICS code and size standard for this solicitation.
39.  
Question:  Can offerors submit RFP packages/materials via an online process instead of mail?


Answer:  Offerors cannot submit proposals via an online process.  

40.  
Question:  Is offeror expected to re-state language in item 12 from Standard Form 33 in the actual proposal package somewhere? If so, where?


Answer: No, the offeror is not expected to re-state language in item 12 of Standard Form 33 in the proposal package.  Signing and including an original and two copies of SF 33 in Part 1 of the offeror’s proposal shows the offerors recognition of the 120 day acceptance period.  

41.  
Question:  We are not clear on the type of task orders the government intends to award under the contract. The title of paragraph B.1 states they will be T&M/Labor Hour.  Attachment J.8 seems to support this.  However, the body of paragraph B.1 states “The contracting officer shall award either firm fixed price or cost reimbursement type task orders.”  The same sentence is repeated in paragraph C.5.  Paragraphs B.1, H.1-3, H.5 and H.6 all contain language specifying which costs will be allowable for reimbursement.  This seems to imply cost reimbursement type tasks.  Also, the invoice requirements in G.1 and J.2 seem be for cost reimbursement.  Questions are as follows:

a.  What type of task orders does the government anticipate awarding: T&M (FAR 16.6), cost reimbursement (FAR 16.3), or fixed price (FAR 16.2)? 


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 1. 

b.  If they will be T&M/Labor Hour (e.g., fixed hourly rates per attachment J.8): 

i. What is the purpose of H.1-3 H.5 and H.6

Answer: Please see the answer to Question No. 1.  

ii. What is the purpose of the following sentence in B.1: “Salary escalations must not exceed 3.5% per year?”




Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 1.  

iii. Will the invoice form in section G.1 and J.2 be revised to be consistent with J.8 (e.g., list labor hours/rates/quantities)?

Answer:  Contractors on cost reimbursement task orders will be reimbursed for time and materials.  Contractors will submit invoices with the number of labor hours expended and the corresponding labor rates as well as other direct and indirect costs expended on the task order.  

c.  If they will be cost reimbursement, will they be CPFF?  If so, how/when will the fee be determined? 

Answer:  Cost Reimbursement task orders shall be Cost Plus Fixed Fee.  The fee will be the fee offerors submit on the loaded hourly labor rate chart , Attachment J.8  of the solicitation.
42.  
Question:  Paragraph B.1 states that in addition to rates by labor category, “Offerors must also (submit) separate rates for each individual proposed under each labor category.”  Questions:

a. Does this mean that if, after award, there are personnel changes new rates must be negotiated? 

Answer:  If, after award, there are personnel changes, the labor rate must not exceed the ceiling rate proposed by the offeror for the applicable labor category.   Any changes in labor rates must be approved in advance by the Contracting Officer.     

a. Will personnel be billed at their individual rate or the rate for the labor category with which they are associated?  If the former, what is the purpose of the individual rate? 

Answer:  Each individual shall bill at the labor rate that was proposed for that individual.  

43.  
Question:  Paragraph H.13 states that “The contractor must perform its duties in accordance with the applicable Act…”  What “Act” is being referred to? 


Answer:  The Fair Labor Standards Act.  

44.  
Question:  Paragraph L.6, subparagraph 5: “Content of Presentation.”  Some of the information requested in this paragraph is for specific quantities of hours and/or completion dates that can only be provided if the specific tasks are known.  Examples are below.  Could the government please clarify its intent? 

a. Sub paragraph c, contract work schedule, requests offerors to “Show the starting date and ending date of each activity…” 

Answer:  Offerors should propose a hypothetical contract work schedule, staff loading chart, etc. to demonstrate an adequate understanding of the task as detailed in Section C.  

b. Sub paragraph d, contract resource allocations, requests offerors to “Describe the total number of hours…that will be allocated to each of the activities…” 

Answer: Offerors should propose a hypothetical task which illustrates their resource allocation, to demonstrate an adequate understanding of the type of task as detailed in Section C.  

45.  
Question:  Paragraph L.7, Part 3 specifies cost information desired by the government as part of the proposal. 

a. Should attachment J.8, loaded hourly rate chart, include rates for all labor, including in house as well as consultants, and/or sub contractors? 

Answer: The loaded hourly rate chart should include all labor, inclusive of labor for the prime and the subcontractor (s).  Rates for consultants should not be included in the hourly rate chart.  

b. What is meant by the phrase “What is the total cost of (each) subcontract.”  Specifically, will sub contractors be billed at the rates in attachment J.7, loaded hourly rate chart? 


Answer:  Subcontractors will be billed at the rates proposed in the loaded hourly rate chart for each subcontractor
.  

46.  
Question:  Paragraph L.8 Special Requirements, specifies that the Project Director be available 20% of the time.  This seems inconsistent with paragraph B.3 which only guarantees a minimum of $2.5K in task orders.  Could the government please clarify its intent? 


Answer:  The government assumes that offerors submitting proposals under this solicitation are seeking to procure task orders up to the annual $2,000,000 ceiling, not just the base year guarantee of $2,500. 
47.  
Question:  Paragraph M.2 states that “The government will perform a cost analysis…” Meanwhile, paragraph L.8 does not request cost backup (direct, overhead, G&A, profit) for proposed hourly rates. What will be evaluated in the government’s cost analysis?


Answer:  The government will evaluate and compare offerors’ loaded hourly labor rates, inclusive of the unloaded hourly rate, fringe benefits, overhead, G&A and fee.  

48.  
Question:  Section L Part 1: Are the certifications and representations (section K) required only for the prime contractor or also for major sub contractors? 


Answer:  Certifications and Representations are required only for the prime contractor.  

49. 
 Question:  Section L Page 52: The RFP has the following “(d) What is the total cost of (each) subcontract?” How will we provide this information unless we know what tasks orders we receive? 


Answer:  Section L.7 Part 3 (3) 2. should read as follows:


2. List the names and addresses of any subcontractor* the offeror intends to use in the performance of a resulting contract.  Include the following information about the subcontracts(s).


(a) How subcontractor was selected?


(b) Has the subcontractor submitted the loaded hourly rates?


(c) Will the contractor be able to start performance at the start of the contract period?


(d) What services (skills) will the subcontractor provide?


(e) What experience do they have in this technical area?


*Also provide the above information for consultants you intend to use in the performance of a resulting contract.


Consultants: Persons who are members of a particular profession or possess a special skill and who are not officers or employees of the contractor or a proposed subcontractor.   

50.  
Question:  Section L-5 “Past Performance” directs offerors to list and discuss five “relevant” contracts “for both the offeror and major subcontractors”. It goes on to say that these contracts and subcontracts (have been) “completed during the past five years”.  We have three questions:

a. Does this mean that five contracts each may be submitted on behalf of the offeror and all major subcontractors, or does it mean that a total of five contracts should be submitted, made up of contracts completed  by both the offeror and major subcontractors?

Answer:  The prime contractor must submit five past performance references and the subcontractors each must submit five past performance references.   

b.  
Is it necessary that the full contract be completed in order to be listed here, or is it sufficient that substantial work has been done and deliverables accomplished, even if the contract is a lengthy one that is still active?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 4.

c. 
Section M.3 C. Contractor’s Past Performance discusses the past performance reference sheet (Attachment J.5) May continuation sheets be used to describe the project activities as well as problems encountered and corrective actions taken?

Answer: Continuation sheets may be used to describe the project activities as well as problems encountered and corrective actions taken. 

51.  
Question:  Sections H.9 and L.8 define “Key Personnel” as including the Project Director, Project Managers, Senior Research Associates, and Research Associates. Section B.2 and Attachment J-8 include “Clerical” in the Schedule of Direct Labor Hours Costs. Further, Section L.6 4(d) includes the requirement to “Describe the types of professional, administrative, clerical and other labor that will be required to perform the contract work. Briefly describe each classification of professional and blue collar labor, including position title(s), duties and responsibilities. Describe the total number of hours of each of these professional and blue collar labor classifications that will be allocated to each of the activities identified in the work breakdown analysis from start to finish.”  In completing the Loaded Hourly Rate Chart and Cost Proposal, would include clerical and other title classifications beyond the four primary “Key Personnel” be considered an acceptable offer?


Answer:  Offerors should describe each classification of professional and blue collar labor, and describe the total number of hours each labor category would devote to tasks as detailed in Section C.  This includes personnel other than the key personnel.  

52.  
Question:  Section M.3 B(3) requires “A proposed plan for deploying personnel and resources including: staffing charts listing names, project roles, qualifications, and experience of all professional personnel (including outside consultants); staff time/time loading charts showing the amount of time each staff person will devote to each task and sub-task; and an indication of how staff will be allocated to perform all necessary field work during the project.  Since there are no specific task orders, it is impossible to specify time commitment. Is there a proxy for guaranteeing the availability of key personnel that would be acceptable?


Answer:  No, there is no proxy.  However, pursuant to Section L.9 – Confirmation of Proposed Key Personnel, offerors must submit a certificate upon request by the Contracting Officer certifying that the proposed key personnel are still available for performance under any contract resulting from this solicitation, and that the letters of commitment are still valid.  It should be noted that this confirmation will be required only from those offerors who make the competitive range, at a date and time designated by the Contracting Officer.  Also, see Section L.9.  
53.  
Question:  Subsection L.5 states that the offeror shall submit past performance references for both the offeror and major subcontractors, and then states that a list of 5 contracts is required.  If our company has 2 subcontractors, does this mean that the Government wants a total of 15 past performance contacts (5 from the prime and 5 from each of the subs) or a total of 5 to include both prime and subs?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 50.   

54.   
Question:  Section L.5.: Past Performance. The language in the RFP requests that a list of five relevant contracts completed during the past three years be submitted. Read literally, then, contracts in progress but not completed would not qualify for inclusion. Is this correct? 


Answer: Please see the answer to Question No. 4.  
55.  
Question:  Section L.5.: Past Performance. Regarding relevant contracts completed during the past three years, would specific task orders completed under DOL's predecessor master contract for providing Professional and Administrative Management Support qualify for inclusion on the list, so long as the specific task order was more than 12 months in duration?


Answer:  Specific task orders under DOL’s existing task order contracts would be acceptable for past performance.  
56.  
Question:  Section L.8. Special Requirements. One special requirement is that the Project Director must have a required time commitment of 20% to this project. We interpret this to mean that the proposed Project Director of a specific task order issued under the master contract must be committed to that task order at least 20% time. Is that correct? An alternative interpretation would be that the individual bid as the Project Director for the overall Professional and Administrative Management Support contract must be committed to the project 20% over at least the base period of the contract. However, this interpretation seems implausible, given that some awardees may not be issued any specific task orders, or only ones that are very small scale. Could you confirm that our interpretation is correct?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 7.  
57.  
Question:  Section B.2 notes that "salary escalations must not exceed 3.5% per year. We note, though, that the November-to-November annual percent change in the Consumer Price Index registered 3.5% for each of the last two years (2004 to 2005, and 2003 to 2004), after being just 1.8% the preceding year (2002 to 2003; see http://data.bls.gov/PDQ/servlet/SurveyOutputServlet). Thus, while still quite low by historical standards, the inflation rate does seem to be creeping upwards and may likely exceed 3.5% during the life of this contract. Thus, we request that DOL consider raising the salary escalation cap to 5%.


Answer:  The salary escalation will remain at 3.5%.
58.  
Question:  The Past Performance section (Section L.5) requires bidders and proposed subcontractors to list 5 relevant projects that were completed during the past three years and were of at least 12 months in duration.  If the bidder or subcontractor has fewer than 5 projects meetings these criteria, can fewer than 5 projects be listed?  Can projects lasting less than 12 months in duration be listed?  Can those completed more than 3 years ago be listed?


Answer:   If an offeror has fewer than five projects that meet the criteria, the offeror may submit less than five past performance references.  Projects lasting less then 12 months in duration and those completed more than three years ago will not be used in the past performance evaluation.  

59.  
Question:  Page L-6 the discussion on business plan, point b and d are not clear. This is an IDIQ time and material/fixed price/cost reimbursement contract type as stated in the solicitation documents. Since there is not apparent SAMPLE TASK ORDER to respond to, how can the prime or sub provide the requested information?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 49.

60.  
Question:  Section M.3-, page M-1, paragraph A, please explain the intent of the statement “DOL will evaluate the quality of the task designs and constituent activities? Is it correct that the oral presentations will contribute significantly to the award selection?


Answer:  The oral presentation represents 50 points of the total 155 points that are possible for an offeror to receive.  

61.  
Question:  Attachment J-9, please explain the meaning of “total time commitment over 5 years?”


Answer: Because contracts resulting from this solicitation are Indefinite Quantity/Indefinite Delivery, task order contracts, offerors cannot specify the total time commitment over five years.  Please disregard that part of the modified resume.  

62.  
Question: Are resumes in the modified form to be only 1 page?


Answer:  Resumes can be more than one page.   

63.  
Question: Do the Proposal cover page/title page and table of contents count in the technical submission 35 page limitation?


Answer: No, the cover page/title page and table of contents do not count towards the 35 page limitation.  

64.  
Question: The labor categories that are provided in the solicitation document do not coincide with those of our firm in that we have conference/event planner in three labor categories. We could apply our labor category rates under the “clerical” designation but our rates for that position are significantly different from those of conference/event planner rates. Please provide some guidance? 


Answer: Offerors are limited to the four labor categories.  The conference/event planner should be listed in one of the categories closest to the position.  The same would go for any other position in your firm.   

65.  
Question: Under Task 9, it is stated that "These surveys are conducted under ETA’s umbrella Office of Management and Budget (OMB) clearance. This umbrella clearance allows a simplified and expedited procedure."  What is the typical time between submission and approval of a research plan under this umbrella clearance?


Answer: The time for OMB clearance varies based on OMB’s workload. 
66.  
Question: The Department has requested a maximum labor ceiling rate for each labor category. Please confirm that the individual loaded rates for the each staff bid will be used on actual task orders.


Answer: The individual loaded rates for will be used during actual task orders.  Any deviation from the rates submitted in the proposal will require approval from the Contracting Officer.    

67.  
Question: Does the Department require five "Past Performance" references for 1the prime contractor and each "major" subcontractor or is the requirement for a total of five references for the team?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 50.  
68.  
Question: What is the contract type? Section B.1 indicates that this is a T&M/Labor Hour IDIQ type solicitation, but also indicates that the Contracting Officer shall award either FFP or cost reimbursable type task orders. Please clarify.


Answer:
  Please see the answer to Question No. 1.  
69.  
Question: Is the government going to provide a qualifications matrix for the labor categories listed in attachment J-8?


Answer:  No, the government is not going to provide a qualifications matrix for the labor categories listed in attachment J.8.  

70.  
Question: In section L, paragraph L.5, subparagraph A, it states, "The offeror must submit the past performance reference information by filling out Attachment J.5 for each of the five reference."  The RFP then goes on to list 9 pieces of information that must be included for each of the references.  These 9 items do not line up with Attachment J.5.  Specifically, Attachment J.5 has no field for Contract Type, Program manager, Administrative contraction officer or List of major subcontractors. How do we fulfill the requirement for the 9 pieces of information when they are not accounted for on the Attachment?  Should this information be submitted separate from the Attachment?


Answer:  Describe the contract type in box 11 of Attachment J.5.  The program manager is synonymous with the technical point of contact (box 9a).  List the administrative contracting officer in box 9b, along with the contracting officer.  List major subcontractors in box 11, the description of contract work.  

 

71.  
Question: In one part of the solicitation we are required to submit our Response via electronic submission only. However, latter in the proposal we are required to provide sealed packages with several signed copies of our response along with our transparencies.  Can you please clarify are we supposed to submit the proposal both electronically and via a sealed package or are we supposed to deliver it just one way.  If we are required to provide transparencies via electronic format, do you want to receive the slides via Microsoft power point?  Can you please clarify the exact submission procedure DOL is requiring for this Proposal?


Answer:  Requests for Clarification as well as requests to be placed on the bidders list can only be submitted electronically.  The proposal itself cannot be submitted electronically and must be submitted in a hard copy format in accordance with Section L.7.  

72.  
Question: Option Year Rates:  It is our understanding that the loaded hourly rates are proposed rates and that they can be adjusted (up or down) using the approved federal government Indirect Cost Rate for each year.  Is that correct?


Answer:  New rates, resulting from new indirect cost rates will be considered during the negotiation of each option period. 

73.  
Question: Subcontractor J. Forms:  Which J. Forms are required for major subcontractors?


Answer:  Attachment J.5 must be completed for the five past performance references supplied by the subcontractor.  

74.  
Question: J. Forms:  Are the J.2-Contractor’s Invoice and J.3-Contractor’s Detailed Statement of Cost included as examples of what will be required if offeror is selected to perform a task order or must they be completed as part of the offeror’s submission?  If they must be completed, since there is no actual task order, please provide instructions on what costs to use in completing them.


Answer:  Offerors are not required to complete Attachments J.2 and J.3 and include them in their proposals.  

75.  
Question: Staff Loading Chart:  

a. Should a Staff Loading Chart be completed for each of the nine tasks listed in the RFP or should just one be completed to illustrate offeror’s method of estimating time on task?  

Answer:  A staff loading chart should be completed for each of the nine tasks.  

b. Should major subcontractor hours be listed in the prime’s staff loading chart or should a separate one be completed for each major subcontractor?

Answer:  Both prime and subcontractor hours should be submitted on one staff loading chart for each of the nine tasks.  

c. Should all staffing loading charts (9) be included in the Technical Approach and, if yes, will they count against the 35-page limit or can they be attached as an appendix and not count against the page limit?

Answer:  Staff loading charts will not count towards the 35-page limit.  They can be attached as an appendix to the technical proposal.  

76.  
Question: Does the oral presentation have to cover all 9 tasks listed in C.4?


Answer:  My understanding was that they did not have to cover all nine, but I cannot find in the RFP where it says how many.  

77.  
Question: Please clarify the time commitment for the Project Director – which is listed as 25% in L.6 Oral Presentation (page L-3) and 20% in M.3 B (5) (1) (page M-3).


Answer: Please see the answer to Question No. 7.  

78.  
Question: Section L.5 begins by stating that offerors shall submit information for both the offeror and proposed major subcontractors.    Section L.5.A asks for 5 “relevant” contracts and subcontracts completed during the past 3 years and at least 12 months in duration.  Should the offeror submit a TOTAL of 5 past performance references, including past performance references for its major subcontractor(s), or do the offeror and its major subcontractor(s) have to submit 5 references EACH?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 50.  

79.  
Question: Section L.5.A.  Are past performance references acceptable if they are for TASK ORDERS, as opposed to contracts or subcontracts, as long as they involve work similar in nature to the proposed Statement of Work?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 12. 

80.  
Question: Section L.5.C. says that offerors will be evaluated on performance under existing and prior contracts.  This seems inconsistent with Section L.5.A’s reference to contracts completed during the past 3 years.   Are past performance references acceptable for ACTIVE contracts or subcontracts?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 4.  

81.  
Question: Section L.5.A.  Given that the Statement of Work envisions short term projects as well as long term assignments, are past performance references for projects less than 12 months in duration acceptable, as long as they are for relevant work similar in nature to the proposed Statement of Work?


Answer:  Past Performance references for projects less than 12 months in duration are not acceptable.  

82.  
Question: Section L.6.4.  Can a “senior or general manager” from a large business (or nonprofit) participate in the oral presentation team if they are being bid as the Project Director (or other key personnel, as defined under Section L.8)?


Answer: The Government is aware that  corporate officials are often the ones designated to manage the contracts.  Our concern is corporate officials or others making the oral presentation that will not manage the projects or will be not part of the performance team.  If a company senior manager is proposed as the Project Manager/ Director, or designated in the budget for the requirement, then yes, that person will be allowed to present at the oral presentation.

83.  
Question: Please clarify which elements in Section L.7 (A) Part 3 are required to be submitted by subcontractors.


Answer: Subcontractors are to submit all elements of L.7 (A) Part 3.
84.  
Question: The RFP states in Section B.1 that this is an ID/IQ time and materials/labor hour type solicitation.  This same Section then states that the Contracting Officer shall award either firm fixed price or cost reimbursement type task orders.  Can you clarify how the government expects contractors to bid requests for task orders from the required T&M/Labor Hour schedule of direct labor hour costs and then perform work under a fixed price or cost reimbursement awarded task order?  Is the cost reimbursement terminology in this case to be understood in terms of the labor costs to be actual direct labor costs incurred or the labor hour rates offered for each of the five labor categories?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 1.  

85.  
Question: Q&A #5 and #27 seem to contradict each other in their attempt to clarify Section B.  Can you clarify if it is a requirement or option to name various qualified individuals under each labor category with a separate max ceiling rate for each labor category and separate individual labor hour rates for each individual named under each labor category?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 18.    

86.  
Question:  B.2:  The RFP states “Actual rates proposed for each task order must not exceed those negotiated for the base and each option year.” 

a.  Will DOL treat the negotiated labor category rates as ceilings for individual task orders?  

Answer:  DOL will treat the offeror’s proposed labor category ceiling rates as the ceilings rates for individual task orders.  DOL may negotiate the ceiling rates as part of the evaluation procedures.  

b.  Or, does the requirement not to exceed actual rates apply to individuals included in the initial proposal?

Answer:  If an individual was listed in the labor rate chart of the offerors proposal, an offeror cannot exceed the proposed rate for that individual on any awarded task orders without prior approval from the contracting officer.  However, if an individual was not listed in an offerors proposal, then the labor rate of the individual cannot exceed the proposed ceiling rate for the labor category the individual is billed under without approval from the Contracting Officer.

87.  
Question:  B.2 Can offerors include additional categories (beyond those listed in B.2)?


Answer:  Please see answer to Question No. 64.
88.  
Question:  B.2 FAR 52.232-7 of the RFP states that invoices will be “computed by multiplying the appropriate hourly rates prescribed in the Schedule by the direct labor hours performed.” In Section B.2, DOL has requested that we submit both (a) ceiling rates by labor category position and (b) separate rates for each individual proposed under each labor category.

a. Which of the above hourly rates will be represented in the Schedule B.2 that will be used for billing purposes? 

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 86 b.  

b. If Schedule B.2 includes separate rates for each individual, what process will be used to add qualified individuals to the Schedule B.2 (who may be hired after contract award, say in Option Year 1)?



Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 86 b.  

89.  
Question: B.2  Are consultant and subcontractor rates to be included in the Schedule B.2 (in the appropriate labor category position)?


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 45.  

90.  
Question:  B.2  Is the 3.5% escalation limit noted in this section in reference to the ceiling rates?


Answer:  The 3.5% escalation limit shall be applied to both the ceiling rate and to each individual’s labor rate.   

91.  
Question:  C.4  Please provide some criteria for distinguishing between “meetings” (Tasks 1 and 2) and “conferences” (Tasks 3 and 4).  Differences could include, for example, # participants, # presenters, and types of promotion.


Answer: The main difference is the # of participants.
92.  
Question:  C.5, Detailed Task Requirements (Description of Work:  in the second set of enumerated points, number 2 notes “Contractors must use actual loaded hourly rates for personnel within each labor category when developing their proposed budget.” Is the “actual loaded hourly rate” the rate reflected in Schedule B.2? 


Answer:  Yes, the actual loaded hourly rate is reflected in Section B.2 and Attachment J. 8.

93.  
Question:  What is the anticipated start date (for rate construction purposes)?


Answer:  We anticipate a June 1, 2006 start date.
94.  
Question:  FAR 52.232-7, Payments under Time and Materials and Labor Hour Contracts, Alternate II is incorporated by reference. Does this clause eliminate the inclusion of the cost of materials in any resulting task orders? If so, how will the cost of conference logistics such as travel, brochures, communications, duplication and other material direct costs be handled under the task orders?


Answer:  This clause does not eliminate the inclusion of the cost of materials in any resulting task orders.  

95.  
Question:  Subsection A references “completed” contracts, but Subsection C refers to both “existing and prior contracts.” Can contractors submit current contracts as well as completed contracts?  (Many relevant projects that could be proposed are in the fourth or fifth year of implementation, but not yet “completed”.)


Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 4.  

96.  
Question:  Part 2 of this section requests letters of intent and 3 page resumes for all key personnel. Key personnel are identified as staff proposed for Project Director, Project Manager, Senior Research Associate and Research Associate. Including offeror staff, consultants and subcontractor staff, this represents a very large number of “key personnel”, and resumes. Will the Government consider providing a maximum number of resumes/letters of intent to be submitted by position?


Answer:  The offeror must supply resumes for all personnel listed as key personnel in Section H.9 of the solicitation.  

97.  
Question:  Are individual letters of intent for staff also required when a company letter of intent is also completed? Or are staff covered by the organization’s letter?


Answer: Individual letters of intent are required for all key personnel.  One organization letter is not sufficient.  

98.  
Question:  Will the Government accept a copy of scanned versions of the signed letter of intent?


Answer:  The offeror must supply one original and three copies of each letter of intent.  

99.  
Question:  In Amendment 1 to the RFP, question 27, the Government notes that “Offerors are to use their approved Indirect Cost Rates approved by a Federal Agency” for developing the rates for all years. Section B.2 and C.5 note that contractors will use actual rates in task orders. If the offeror’s Federal Agency authorizes new rate agreements for fringes, overhead, etc. (upward or downward) after contract award (whether in Option Year 1 or 3), then “actual rates” may change. How will the new actual rates be incorporated into the contract? 


Answer:   Please see answer to Question No. 72.  

100.  
Question:  The answer to Question 17 in amendment 1 instructs offerors to “…disregard the question.” Please clarify.


Answer:  The answer to Question No. 17, in Amendment No. 1 should have said, please disregard the following portion of Section M.3 B: “and the adequacy of the time commitment for each individual in relation to the specific tasks that they will perform.”

101.  
Question:  Can the Government provide a list of task orders awarded and the award amount under the existing IQC contract that would provide offerors a sense of the type of projects and size that have been implemented?


Answer: The following are titles and award amounts of various task orders awarded under existing IDIQ contracts:

High Growth Job Training Initiative  - $500,000
Disabilities Initiative Technical Assistance Activities - $400,000

Youth Vision Regional Forums - $229,981
A Study of Factors Influencing Labor Force Participation of Older Workers - $40,000

Impediments to Retaining Older Workers - $14,841

DTAA  Electronic Archiving - $179,615


Evaluation and Technical Assistance Support for the Quality Child Care Initiative - $207,996


Implementation of Data Validation - $500,000

102.  
Question: Page C-3: Task 6, Subtask 2 is to "provide methodological training for a variety of user groups".   Is it expected that this will be training in methodologies for carrying out high quality evaluations and policy studies? If not, to what sort of methodologies does it refer?


Answer:  Yes.  

Question:  If an organization is bidding as both a prime contractor and a sub-contractor, can it make use of the same key personnel on both bids as long as their proposed percentage time commitments to both contracts (plus their existing work commitments) do not exceed 100%?

Answer:  Yes, if an organization is bidding as both a prime contractor and a sub-contractor (or as a subcontractor on more than one proposal), it can use the same key personnel on both as long as the personnel do not exceed 100% time commitment on the contracts.  

103.  
Question:  Can professional staff be designated as something other than "key personnel"? (That is, is there a designation of "non-key personnel"?)

Answer:  Professional staff can be designated as something other than key personnel if the labor category they fit under is not listed in Section H.9, Key Personnel.  

104.  
Question:  Is it allowed to offer a proposal for this opportunity which addresses only Tasks 1-5?


Answer:  Offerors must demonstrate their capability to perform all nine tasks.  If an offeror does not itself have the capability to perform a given task, the offeror may satisfy the RFP by proposing to use a subcontractor(s) that has the capability to perform the task.  An offer who proposes subcontractors will not be penalized in the evaluation of the offeror’s proposal.  

105.  
Question:  We noted that the cover page to the RFP request we complete and submit a proposal/bid intent form. I did not see such a form on the DOL website.

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 6.  

106.  
Question:  Section L.5, Past Performance, requires "submitting a list of 5 contracts and subcontracts completed during the past 3 years" "for both the offeror and each major subcontractor."  Is there a limit on the total contract references to be included?  Does this mean that the offeror submits 5 and each major subcontractor submits 5 or is it 5 in total for offeror and all subcontractors? 

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question No. 50.  

107.  
Question:  If a small business is listed as a subcontractor to a large business, and is also submitting its own offer, is the small business less likely to be awarded a contract because of this cross-listing?


Answer:  No, all offerors will be evaluated equally.  

108.  
Question:  Can we be a subcontractor to more than one (1) prime contractor?


Answer:  Yes, a contractor can propose to subcontract with more than one prime, provided that the personnel’s combined time commitment on all of the contracts is not greater than 100%.  
 

5. PROJECT NO.





CODE





7. ADMINISTERED BY





2. AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION NO.





CODE





6. ISSUED BY





8. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR





4. REQUISITION/PURCHASE REQ. NO.





3. EFFECTIVE DATE





9A. AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO.





9B. DATED





PAGE                 OF PAGES





10A. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT/ORDER NO.





10B. DATED





BPA NO.





1. CONTRACT ID CODE





FACILITY CODE





CODE





  Offers must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation or as amended, by one of the following methods:





The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in Item 14.  The hour and date specified for receipt of Offers





E. IMPORTANT:                       X                                





is extended,





  (a) By completing Items 8 and 15, and returning __________ copies of the amendment; (b) By acknowledging receipt of this amendment of each copy of the





  offer submitted; or (c) By separate letter or telegram which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment numbers.  FAILURE OF YOUR AC-





  KNOWLEDGMENT TO BE RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY





is not extended.





12. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA





(REV. 10-83)





is required to sign this document and return ___________ copies to the issuing office.





is not,





A. THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO:    (Specify authority)   THE CHANGES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE CONTRACT ORDER NO. IN ITEM 10A.





15C. DATE SIGNED





B. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT/ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT THE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES                                                                                





SET FORTH IN ITEM 14, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF FAR 43.103(b).





  RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER.  If by virtue of this amendment you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may be made





  by telegram or letter, provided each telegram or letter makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment, and is received prior to the opening hour





  and date specified.





C. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY OF:





D. OTHER





BY





Contractor                                                                                                              0





16C. DATE SIGNED





14. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION





16B. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA





Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in Item 9A or 10A, as heretofore changed, remains unchanged and in full force and effect.





15A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER





16A. NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTING OFFICER





15B. CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR





STANDARD FORM 30 





STANDARD FORM 30 





(Type or print)





(Type or print)





(Organized by UCF section headings, including solicitation/contract subject matter where feasible.)





(No., street, county, State and ZIP Code)





(If other than Item 6)





(Specify type of modification and authority)





(such as changes in paying office, appropriation date, etc.)





(If required)





(If applicable)





(SEE ITEM 11)





(SEE ITEM 13)





(X)





(X)





13. THIS ITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACTS/ORDERS,





IT  MODIFIES THE CONTRACT/ORDER NO. AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14.





11. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS





AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION/MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT





(Signature of person authorized to sign)





(Signature of Contracting Officer)





  1





  176





2





      1/13/2006











jlm





U.S. Department of Labor, ETA/OGCM





Division of Contract Services





200 Constitution Avenue, NW





Room N4655





Washington DC 20210





U.S. Department of Labor, ETA





Division of Contract Services





200 Constitution Avenue, NW





Room N4655





Washington DC 20210





To all Offerors 





DOL051RP20055





12/14/2005





X





x





             x





0

















Please see attached





KEITH A. BOND





Contracting Officer








